
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

The Economy, Arts, Sports, and 
Public Realm Policy and 

Accountability Committee 
Agenda 

 

Wednesday 19 November 2025 at 7.00 pm 
 

145 King Street (Ground Floor), Hammersmith, W6 9XY 
 

Watch the meeting live: youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham 
 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Rory Vaughan (Chair) 
Councillor Adam Peter Lang 
Councillor Ashok Patel 
 

Councillor Amanda Lloyd-Harris (Conservative) 
Councillor Trey Campbell-Simon (Green) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Charles Francis 

Governance and Scrutiny 
 Tel: 07776 672945 

E-mail: Charles.Francis@lbhf.gov.uk 
Web: www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
 

 
This meeting is open to the public and press but spaces are limited. If you would like 
to attend, please contact Charles.Francis@lbhf.gov.uk. The building has disabled 
access. 
 

Date Issued: 11 November 2025 

https://www.youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


  

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

The Economy, Arts, Sports, and Public 
Realm Policy and Accountability 

Committee 
Agenda 

 
19 November 2025 

 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken. 
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards 
Committee. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES  4 - 18 

 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting and note any 
outstanding actions. 
 

 

4.   ACTIVE WELLBEING STRATEGY  19 - 35 

 This report provides the background and initial Action Plan for the Active 
Wellbeing Strategy.  A previous report was brought to the Committee on 
29 April 2025 setting out the rationale for a move towards a holistic 

 



  

approach to physical activity and wellbeing, recognising the role of 
movement, connection, and community engagement in improving health 
outcomes and reducing inequalities.  
 

5.   PLAY TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME 2025-28  36 - 43 

 This report provides an overview of the current condition of 
Hammersmith and Fulham’s playgrounds and outlines the development 
of the 2025-2028 Play Transformation programme which will see a 
£8.3m investment across the borough. 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

The Economy, Arts, 
Sports, and Public 
Realm Policy and 

Accountability 
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Monday 21 July 2025 
 

 

 
PRESENT 
 
 
Committee members: Councillors Rory Vaughan (Chair), Adam Peter Lang, Ashok 
Patel and Amanda Lloyd-Harris 
 

Other Councillors:   
Councillor Florian Chevoppe-Verdier (Cabinet Member for Public Realm) 
 
 
Officers:   
Bram Kainth, Executive Director - Place 
Mark Raisbeck, Director of Public Realm 
Val Birchall, Assistant Director, Culture Tourism & Sport 
Daniel Waller, Libraries and Archives Service Manager 
Ian Hawthorn, Assistant Director Highways and Parks 
Ryan Alexander, Service Manager, Highways Works Coordinator  
Annie Baker, Assistant Director Street Environmental Services 
Valerie Simpson, Assistant Director, Environmental Health and Regulatory Services 
Charles Francis, Committee Coordinator  
 
 
Before the start of formal business, the Chair thanked Councillor Jackie Borland for 
her many years on the committee and welcomed Councillor Amanda Lloyd-Harris as 
a new committee member to her first meeting. The Chair also acknowledged the 
hard work by Councillor Sharon holder as the outgoing Cabinet Member for Public 
Realm and welcomed Councillor Florian Chevoppe-Verdier to his first meeting as her 
successor. 
 
 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Liz Collins, Andrew Jones 
(Cabinet Member for the Economy) and Zarar Qayyum (Cabinet Member for 
Enterprise and Skills). Apologies for lateness were provided by Councillor Ashok 
Patel. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the Economy, Arts, Sports and Public Realm Policy and 
Accountability Committee meeting held on 29 April 2025 were agreed. 
 
 

4. BLACK HISTORY PROJECT UPDATE  
 
Val Birchall, Assistant Director, Culture Tourism and Sport introduced the item which 
provided an update on the work in progress on the community collecting and 
engagement project being co-produced with residents to generate black history 
content for exhibition, conservation and education purposes. 
 
Daniel Waller, Libraries and Archives Service Manager provided a presentation 
which covered the following points: 
 

 Information explaining how the Black History Project would be implemented. 

 Details on the interactive family history event held at West London College. 

 The Wendell Park Primary interactive workshop, the outcomes and how this 
made the students feel. 

 Information on the Island Records Blue Plaque celebration. 

 Information on The Black History Month Launch event held in Lyric Square. 

 Details of the Windrush 75th Anniversary celebrations held in Shepherd’s 
Bush Green and at Riverside Studios. 

 The Phase 1 – activities currently under way in Fulham and plans for the 
Phase 2 And 3 Activities of the Community Collecting and Engagement work 
planned for Shepherds Bush and Hammersmith, taking place between 
October 2025 and October 2026. 

 in the intention for a celebratory culmination event and the creation of a 
resource for the whole community. 

 
Councillor Adam Peter Lang commented he was pleased with the work which had 
been conducted and cited it as a good example of co-production. He highlighted that 
he had attended several Black History events which had been excellent. He referred 
to Bob Marley who recorded in the borough and the Mercury Prize Winner, Arlo 
Parks who came from Hammersmith and Fulham which illustrated there was a rich 
history of culture within the borough. He echoed the Chair in thanking Councillor 
Sharon Holder for her work in the area and the need to continue it and develop it 
further. He asked where some of the Black History collections might be placed, so 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

that the artefacts became a permanent resource for the London community, as well 
as for people from further afield. In response, Val Birchall explained the current 
thinking was that some elements of the collection would be exhibited in local 
communities as this would be a way of building an understanding of what had been 
happening there. In the longer term, it was hoped there would be an exhibition of 
materials which might take place in a library or the new civic campus. Currently, 
officers are working with local communities to try and establish the most appropriate 
location for materials, depending on what the content was. Councillor Adam Peter 
Lang agreed that using the civic campus for some of the materials was a good idea. 
 
Councillor Chevoppe-Verdier agreed that the civic campus would be used but he 
also wished to ensure that the materials were available to residents across the 
borough. So, the use of roving collections was a possibility. The Authority also 
remained mindful of the cost implications of hosting a collection in the long term.  
 
Councillor Amanda Lloyd-Harris thanked officers for the report and noted the 
progress which had been made. She noted that a major player in the borough, rich in 
histories, had not been involved and that was the BBC. In response, Daniel Waller 
confirmed the Council contacted the BBC when the Cultural Compact was being 
established but officers had not fully explored BBC participation and officers would 
follow up this suggestion. Val Birchall highlighted that Riverside Studios had the 
Black Theatre Archive which was another important resource to incorporate into the 
project. 
 
Councillor Amanda Lloyd-Harris commented the Council had some artefacts in the 
archives at Fulham Palace. She asked if these were going to be included, where the 
Council held them. In response, Daniel Waller confirmed that existing collections 
from the Council and Fulham Palace would be used and incorporated. 
 
In terms of the location of the collection, Councillor Amanada Lloyd-Harris 
understood there were leanings to potentially house this in the north of the borough. 
She felt it was important the collection was located centrally so everyone had access 
to it, and it was not difficult to view. In response, Val Birchall confirmed that a final 
destination for the collection had not been agreed, but the intention was for all 
residents to be able to access it.  
 
Councillor Ashok Patel commented that the definition of black in paragraph 5 of the 
report, was a wider picture than simply the Windrush Generation and so he felt that 
officers needed to look at this further. And in relation to the Working Group, whether 
this was reflected in this definition and if there was full participation as far as diversity 
was concerned within the Working Group. In response, Val Birchall confirmed that 
the Working Group was constituted before the community had an opportunity to 
consider what the term black meant and how they wished to define it, and it was 
acknowledged that there needed to be a wider representation on the Working Group 
as a result. In relation to the Windrush aspect, Val Birchall explained that currently 
with the Fulham phase of the project, the aim was to focus on the larger population 
groups in that area. However, there was scope to look at pockets or particular 
communities that were more prevalent as the project progressed.  
 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

The Chair, Councillor Vaughan commented there was a trove of evidence being 
discovered and several events were being put on. In terms of the timing of the 
project, he asked whether there would be an overlap between the Fulham phase and 
Black History month in October. Daniel Waller confirmed that the timing of events 
and activities had been discussed by the Steering Group, and it was making plans to 
ensure connections were made with different people locally. 
 
The Chair asked how the cultural thread would be taken forwards, such as The Bush 
Theatre, which was a large supporter and promoter of black culture (and a 
considerable amount of new writing was supported there), the Blue plaques 
celebrating Fanny Eaton the first black supermodel and whether the play that was 
written about this and shown at the Sands Ends Arts and Community Centre in 
Fulham could be reshown during Black History month. The Chair also mentioned 
Island Records and Peckings Records in Askew Road and asked if some of this local 
scene could be explored. 
 
The Chair also asked what publicity and support officers had for the events and 
whether they had considered the intergenerational aspects of the events. In 
response, Daniel Waller confirmed the play concerning Fanny Eaton had been 
successfully shown at Sands End Community Arts Centre, Riverside Studios and the 
borough’s three main libraries (which meant it was seen by a new audience of 
persons that were not theatre goers) and this would be reshown. In relation to the 
music element, Daniel Waller confirmed that the Cultural Team had been working on 
this aspect and Emma Jerrard in the Events Team was looking to draw on the rich 
musical heritage into future events. In relation to publicity, as the Council was 
working with partners such as Fulham Palace, it was a case of using their publicity 
channels in conjunction with the Council’s. And with regards to the intergenerational 
element, Daniel Waller confirmed that as part of the Steering Group, the Council had 
good contacts with schools, Nubian Life and the Libraries and Archives Service also 
had a Heritage Officer who also had a strong list of contacts. Looking ahead to the 
conclusion of the project in 12 months’ time, Daniel Waller stated that it required a 
significant amount of development if it was going to encompass all the resources in 
the borough and it would be a huge project. 
 
Concluding the item, the Chair explained there was a wealth of interesting events on 
the horizon to develop the project further, and the committee would welcome a 
further update in due course. Reiterating some of the discussions, the project 
needed to be brought to local communities, the BBC needed to be consulted and 
engaged, and no final destination had been agreed for the collection. Further points 
included the need for wider representation on the Team bringing the Project forward. 
It was also important that the thread of music, theatre and Black culture was pulled 
together as had played an important part in the life of the borough, as well as 
capturing and documenting memories from previous large-scale events, such as the 
Windrush event. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. That the Committee review and comment on the report.   
 
 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
5. HIGHWAY ROADWORKS MANAGEMENT AND CO-ORDINATION  

 
Ian Hawthorn, Assistant Director Highways and Parks provided a presentation which 
outlined how roadworks were currently managed and coordinated in the borough 
using the LBHF permit scheme. It described the proposed enhancements to the 
London Permit Scheme, known as the Lane Rental Scheme, which provides 
additional protection for fifty of the borough’s key roads. 
 
The following points were noted: 

 Background on roadworks and their management in H&F. 

 Details on the multiple assets which make up the Highway network. 

 Communication / collaboration and the co-ordination of works. To ensure 
effective works planning and minimised disruption. 

 Details on the process by which works permits are issued and the conditions 
surrounding these. 

 Information on penalties and fines for non-compliance / delayed works. 

 Details on H&F future co-ordination, and the Lane Rental Scheme. 

 The benefits of the Lane Rental Scheme including: 
1. Less roadworks on the busiest roads. 
2. Utilities contribute to highway maintenance funding. 
3. Reducing the days roadworks occupy key roads. 
4. Improved air quality. 
5. Reduced negative economic impact on local businesses. 
6. Improved contractor practices across the industry to work smarter.  
7. Improved bus journey times. 

 
In relation to the Lane Rental Scheme, Councillor Ashok Patel asked what discretion 
Cadent Gas or Thames Water would have when carrying out works on the fifty roads 
cited in Appendix 1 of the report. In response, Ian Hawthorn confirmed it was a 
challenge for both these organisations, as a considerable amount of their main 
assets sat in those roads (such as large water mains, gas mains, sewers, electrical 
and telecoms infrastructure) as they had the most capacity for these services. And 
due to the way the organisations worked, it was very difficult for them not to be 
impacted by lane rental scheme. As a result, the implications of lane rental would 
drive both organisations to pre-plan their works and deliver maintenance and repairs 
in a very different way than today. Ian Hawthorn provided details of the current 
permit fees and explained the implications of moving to a daily charge under lane 
rental which would lead to different organisational behaviours. 
 
Councillor Ashok Patel noted the consultation was planned for August to September 
when lots of people would be away and asked about its timing. In response, Ian 
Hawthorn explained the Council was on prescribed government timetable and if the 
Council wished to be included in the second phase, the consultation needed to be 
undertaken in these months so a submission could be made in October. 
 
In relation to the graphics in the presentation, Councillor Amanada Lloyd-Harris 
noted that the first arm of the five major roads that caused congestion were on the 
boundary or in her ward. She asked whether these statistics had arisen due to the 
closure of Hammersmith Bridge and what the impact of this had been. She asked 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

what percentage of road works and utilities works were conducted at night and given 
the congestion, asked if there was scope for works on the major roads to be 
conducted at night. 
 
With regards to penalties and fines, Councillor Amanda Lloyd-Harris asked where 
possible (with major works) if the Council ensured inspections were conducted 
before works were signed off, so that there were no major surprises. And finally, she 
asked how many other boroughs had introduced the Lane Rental Charge. In 
response, Ian Hawthorn confirmed that Transport for London had a Lane Rental 
Charge, as did Surrey, West Sussex and Kent. Currently, London Boroughs did not 
have Lane Rental charges. The thinking was that several London Boroughs would 
apply to have Lane Rental and the first four were: Camden, Lambeth, Enfield and 
Merton with a number of other boroughs forming elements of the second and third 
tranches of the scheme. 
 
In relation to signing off roadworks before the works were completed, Ian Hawthorn 
provided a detailed explanation of how this was done and why, as well as the issues 
arising from reinstatement work that needed to be checked after it had time to settle. 
With regards to Hammersmith Bridge, he explained this was having an ongoing 
effect on traffic flows. However, as Hammersmith and Fulham was a very busy 
borough, the number of works corelated with how much development was taking 
place as these needed services and telecommunications to be installed. And finally 
in relation to night works, Ian Hawthorn confirmed that Highways work was 
conducted at night but not many utilities were. He highlighted the Lane Rental 
charges applied from 7am to 7pm, so if works were conducted at night, Lane Rental 
would not be charged. 
 
Adding further comments, Mark Raisbeck, Director of Public Realm, acknowledged 
working at night caused noise and disruption to residents. And there was always a 
trade-off between the work being completed sooner and the number of complaints 
received. And as a general comment about pan-London traffic levels, there was a 
degree of evidence to suggest this was reducing overall. Since Hammersmith Bridge 
had closed, traffic levels over surrounding bridges, such as Wandsworth Bridge had 
declined. However, there were several other factors such a cycle or bus policies that 
could alter and have an impact on traffic flows and congestion rates. 
 
Councillor Adam Peter Lang thanked officers for the clear presentation and for 
flagging the benefits of the Lane Rental Scheme. He commented there was a good 
opportunity during the consultation to highlight these benefits to residents. In terms 
of the consultation timeframe, he thought this was very tight, but understood why this 
was the case. He asked officers for further details about the consultation phase. In 
response, Ian Hawthorn explained it was a government set, statutory consultation 
which would outline the scheme, and this would be available on the Council’s 
website. It would require the Council to engage with utilities (Thames Water, BT etc), 
other boroughs and Camden, Lambeth, Enfield and Merton had also been through 
the same process. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Rory Vaughan asked how the Council checked what utilities 
were doing with their permits and also how letter drops by utilities worked. The Chair 

Page 9



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

provided anecdotal evidence about how Thames Water had operated close to his 
home and asked how the permits were issued if they had to cover multiple visits. 
 
In response, Ryan Alexander, Service Manager, Highways Works Coordinator 
explained that the Council did try and monitor each set of works but there was an 
element of trust when an application (for works) was received. If officers noticed that 
only limited progress had been made, then this would be flagged with the utility 
company. Ryan Alexander provided information on what action would be taken in a 
number of different scenarios including the imposition of fines if works were not 
completed on time. And confirmed that when a utility company returned to a site on 
multiple occasions, a permit would be required each time. 
 
In relation to forthcoming works on the Uxbridge Road, the Chair noted that a 
number of residents had lobbied for more trees to be planted. However, he 
appreciated the complexity of adding trees to the highways network. Ian Hawthorn 
confirmed that trees needed a considerable amount of space, and the Council 
insisted that utilities dug around trees by hand to minimise potential damage to the 
tree. 
 
The Chair asked for further details to be provided on site checks and enforcement. In 
response, Ryan Alexander explained that any works involving an excavation or on 
traffic sensitive streets would be inspected the day after the estimated end date for 
two reasons, one for the reinstatement check and secondly for over running works 
check which might lead to a fine. He confirmed that officers aimed to inspect all 
reinstatements that had been carried out. Further details were provided on sample 
checks, quotas, long term inspections after 2 or 3 years and the use of lists of routine 
inspections to check reinstatements after a 3-month period. 
 
Ian Hawthorn also provided information on over-run charges which were charged by 
the day. About 10 years ago the Council charged utility companies about £750k per 
annum. Today, it was noted this was £250k, so it showed that performance had 
improved, but he underlined as this was also an avoidable charge, which illustrated 
this behaviour still required further work. 
 
At the invitation of the Chair, Mr MacDonald-Brown, local resident addressed the 
committee on the impact of the closure of Hammersmith Bridge to motorised traffic. 
He endorsed the comments made by Mark Raisbeck, namely that traffic had not 
increased over neighbouring bridges as shown by TfL’s traffic counts taken on all of 
London’s bridges. He stated it would be good if Councillors and the Borough’s local 
MPs quoted that data rather than relying on anecdotal evidence. He commented that 
the closure of Hammersmith Bridge had been a very effective traffic reduction project 
and hoped it remained closed. 
 
Mark Raisbeck commented that the data was not based on physical counts at those 
particular points (the bridges) but it was extrapolated data. He provided details on 
the Council’s counts, as well as data supplied by TfL but concluded that overall, 
there had been a reduction in traffic levels. 
 
Councillor Florian Chevoppe-Verdier, Cabinet Member for Public Realm,  
commented on the Lane Rental Scheme and explained his primary focus was to 

Page 10



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

reduce nuisance to residents. He reiterated that the Council was aiming to join the 
scheme in the autumn, and it would be good to update the committee on this, as well 
as some conclusions from the early adopters 
  
Concluding the item, the Chair thanked officers for their work and confirmed the 
committee’s support for the Lane Rental Scheme. He was keen that officers planted 
more trees on the Uxbridge Road and highlighted the co-ordination between the 
Council and Utilities was beneficial to residents. He hoped officers would continue to 
encourage Utilities to complete their works within a specified timescale and to ensure 
these were reinstated properly. He looked forward to a further update in due course. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. That the Committee review the report and provide comments. 
 
 

6. UPDATE ON WASTE AND RECYCLING SERVICE DEVELOPMENTS  
 
Annie Baker, Assistant Director, Street Environmental Services provided a 
presentation on the progress made in Hammersmith and Fulham’s waste and 
recycling services through the on-going roll-out of food waste recycling, the 
introduction of wheeled bins and garden waste recycling and other service 
developments. 
 
The following points were highlighted: 

 The context of where Hammersmith and Fulham stood for waste minimisation 
and recycling in comparison to other London Boroughs. 

 The benefits of a wheeled bin and food collection service. 
 Details of the service roll out, the community engagement work which had 

been conducted and flexibility of the service. 
 A sample of the feedback the service had received from residents. 
 Details on the garden waste recycling service. 
 Details on the food waste recycling service, including its uptake by residents. 
 Performance metrics – Noting household recycling rate was up 5 percentage 

points, due to increased food and dry mixed recycling. 
 Details on the social value implications of the service and how this had 

benefited communities. 
 
Councillor Amanda Lloyd-Harris welcomed the proposal about small electrical goods 
as outlined in the report. She explained there was an issue with a number of bins not 
being returned on to the property which highlighted (to potential burglars) that the 
householder was absent. She asked if this issue could be passed to the collection 
teams as a security concern. In addition, she asked about the cost of the garden 
waste collection service, as in her view, this was an additional service charge for a 
pre-existing service within a Council Tax bill. She asked how she should reply to 
residents about the additional charge for a service that was already included in their 
Council Tax. 
 
In relation to the bins, Annie Baker, Assistant Director Street Environmental Services 
asked Councillors to report any instances of bin misplacement so this could be 

Page 11



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

communicated to the crews. The best place for bins was as close to a householders’ 
gate as possible within the boundary of the property. However, all bins should be 
returned to where they were presented. 
 
With regards to the garden waste collection service, Annie Baker confirmed that the 
service was a new service for recycling the garden waste, whereas previously it was 
collected as refuse. As a next step she explained officers would be looking at 
instances where garden waste was combined with refuse to ensure this was 
managed. Councillor Amanda Lloyd-Harris confirmed that her garden waste was still 
being collected as part of her refuse collection, although she was still paying for the 
optional garden waste collection service. She felt refuse and garden waste collection 
services were not consistent. Annie Baker confirmed that this needed to be looked at 
to ensure garden waste was not collected as general refuse. She acknowledged that 
behavioural change took time, but garden waste recycling collection was for 
subscribers only. 
 
Bram Kainth, Executive Director – Place commented that previously all waste was 
being presented in black bags. The Council was actively taking steps to improve its 
recycling and minimise its waste disposal / waste disposal costs and so the 
appropriate food waste and garden waste service collections should be used by 
residents.  
 
Councillor Ashtok Patel welcomed the news that Hammersmith and Fulham was the 
best performing inner London Borough for dry waste recycling. However, he 
reiterated the issue of bins not being returned to where they were stored as a 
growing problem. He also raised the issue of social value and the £1.7 million cited 
in the report. And asked how this was calculated. In response, Annie Baker provided 
a detailed explanation of how this worked and offered to provide further figures on 
this outside the meeting. 
 
The Chair asked if the wages of those persons the Council employed were also 
added to the Social Value calculation. In response, Annie Baker confirmed that this 
did not equate to wages, but there was a value assigned to employing a local person 
under the Social Value element of the contract. In terms of the return of bins, Annie 
Baker confirmed that the Council did not solely rely on the contractor and officers did 
go out and monitor collections. She reiterated her request that those instances of 
bins not being returned to their collection point should be reported to the 
Department. 
 
Councillor Adam Peter Lang commented that the Waste Service was a good news 
story, and many residents had provided him with positive feedback about how the 
Council had been engaging with the community. He noted that only half of Councils 
provided a food waste recycling service and so the Council’s achievements should 
be celebrated. He asked how much longer the Veolia contract would last. In 
response, Annie Baker confirmed that food waste recycling services should be 
provided to all residents by March 2026 and she also provided details on how food 
waste collection services would operate in communal areas for both flats and 
housing estates. She also highlighted that when residents started to separate their 
food waste from their general waste, then food waste levels tended to decrease as 
shopping habits changed. 

Page 12



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
Councillor Adam Peter Lang commented that the food waste collection service was 
saving both the Council and residents money but was also an environmentally sound 
initiative. He asked about the food waste recycling rollout, the communications 
undertaken and the learnings so far. In response, Annie Baker confirmed that 
officers had incorporate the learning from the street-based rollout and would then 
build on this by providing bespoke information related to where they lived. 
 
In relation to the food waste recycling, the Chair explained he had noticed that not all 
residents where he lived had adopted the service and so asked how the Council was 
encouraging residents to do more of this. He also highlighted the issue of pests; food 
waste being scattered on pavements and what actions could be taken to reduce this.  
 
Annie Baker provided details of how the food caddies were designed to minimise 
spillage, however these were knocked over occasionally. Overall, it was noted that 
cleaning issues have reduced since the caddies had been introduced as less food 
waste is presented in black sacks. However, if residents were experiencing 
persistent problems with pests, they were encouraged to contact the Waste Services 
Team.  
 
The Chair asked what strategies were in place to make more residents use the 
caddies and what the uptake levels were. In response, Annie Baker confirmed that 
the tonnage was building month on month and officers would be looking at new ways 
to engage with people and also remind them the service was well established on 
their street. Behavioural change meant that as residents saw what their neighbours 
were doing, then uptake would improve. Further ideas included the use of stickers on 
refuse bins explaining not to put food waste in them and also working with residents’ 
groups and schools / school children to highlight the service and environmental 
improvements recycling brought. 
 
The Chair reiterated the point about bins being returned to their collection point and 
proposed that this might be happening as residents had moved the bins onto the 
pavement to assist the collection teams. Annie Baker confirmed that where repeated 
instances of this were reported, the council would write to residents to ask them to 
locate their bins slightly differently. 
 
With regards to soft plastic recycling target of 2027, the Chair asked if anything could 
be done to bring this forward. In response, Annie Baker confirmed the soft plastics 
category was a wide range of different materials and so recycling sites would need to 
extract this range of materials from the mix and then use a re-processor who could 
take the mixed plastic wrap and turn this into a product. The Council’s role was to 
collect the recycling and separate this, but then to pass in onto the industry where it 
would be recycled. At the moment, there were outlets for some types of plastic wraps 
but not all (as the industry was still being developed). The hope was that in future; 
producers might choose to streamline the different types of plastic wraps that were 
currently available. 
 
The Chair commented he was pleased the garden waste service was starting to be 
successful and the social value which had been created was extremely encouraging. 

Page 13



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

It was also good that overall recycling rates had improved and overall waste levels 
per head of population had also decreased. 
 
At the invitation of the Chair, Mr MacDonald-Brown, local resident addressed the 
committee and confirmed he was a garden waste collection subscriber. He felt that 
people with gardens should pay for the service. However, he thought the £90 cost 
per annum was too high and if this was reduced then there might be more 
subscribers. In relation to the recycling of soft plastics, he commented if Tesco’s 
could provide it, why couldn’t the Council. And in his view, if soft plastics recycling 
was implemented successfully then weekly refuse collections might no longer be 
necessary. 
 
In relation to the garden waste collection service Councillor Chevoppe-Verdier 
commented that this was a user pays model, which at £1.70 per week was not overly 
expensive. The Council was trying to roll out the scheme to more and more people 
and at some point in the future the charge might be reduced. With regards to the 
availability of soft plastics recycling, the Council used Western Riverside Waste 
Authority which was shared with several other boroughs and the key issue here was 
space, and the capacity of a shared recycling provider to provide this service to 
several boroughs concurrently. 
 
Concluding the item, the Chair thanked the officers for all their work, noting that 
recycling rates had increased and there was scope to improve them further (through 
communal collections, schools and other venues). He encouraged more recycling, 
especially for food waste. The Committee welcomed that residents were subscribing 
to the garden waste collection service and in terms of soft plastics the Committee 
encouraged the introduction of this as soon as possible. And on operational points, 
he asked that officers check where residents were asked to present their bins from 
the outset and he encouraged Councillors to report instances where bins where 
being left on the pavement outside individual properties. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the committee note the report and the contents of the accompanying 
presentation. 
 

7. REPORT ON THE DRAFT MARKETS AND STREET TRADING LICENSING 
POLICY 2025- 2030 AND UPDATED PRESCRIBED STANDARD CONDITIONS 
FOR STREET TRADING LICENCES  
 
Valerie Simpson, Assistant Director Environmental Health and Regulatory Services 
provided a report which provided the details and rationale for having a new H&F 
Markets & Street Trading Licensing Policy. This also provided an update to the 
prescribed standard conditions and the list of commodities. The presentation 
covered the following points: 
 

 Key Functions and the remit of the Markets and Street Trading Team. 

 The Council’s five priorities and aspirations: 
1. Attracting and retaining new traders. 
2. Addressing the economic challenges of the market. 

Page 14



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

3. Demonstrating the wider value of markets. 
4. Professionalising Market management. 
5. Improving relationships with Traders. 

 
The key benefits for adopting a Markets and Street Trading Licensing Policy. 

 Key updates to the standard conditions for Street Trading Licenses. 

 Details on the revised commodities list. 

 Information on the following: 
1. Shop front licences. 
2. The declaration of Market Rights. 
3. Designating the whole borough for regulated street trading activities 
4. Details on the Market and Street Trading consultation proposals and the 

revised timetable for formal adoption. 
5. Details on the Enforcement Policy and speaking to Traders.  

 
Councillor Adam Peter Lang noted the points in the report concerning protecting the 
environment, protecting traders and the importance of aesthetics for traders (pitches 
and coverings). He asked who would monitor the policy and enforce it when it was 
implemented. In response, Valerie Simpson, Assistant Director, Environmental 
Health and Regulatory Services confirmed the Enforcement Team was very small 
and so it would need to work in conjunction with the Law Enforcement Team (LET), 
Street Trading, Public Protection and Highways (concerning shopfronts) and be a 
collective approach. And when the policy was rolled out it would initially be to those 
areas in the borough which were most visible or most problematic first as it was 
unrealistic to assume all issues could be solved immediately. 
 
In terms of the shop fronts and people using the pavements, the Chair asked if the 
LET could assist, as the use of the pavement was usually one metre from a 
premises and so they could speak to the shop owners. In response, Valerie Simpson 
explained the main requirement was to clearly set out what the expectations were, 
and what non-compliance looked like because of anomalies such as private 
forecourts. So, when the expectations were clear, a pan-council approach could be 
taken to enforcement. The Chair agreed that the rules and regulations need to be 
clear to all concerned so there was better compliance. 
 
Councillor Amanda Lloyd-Harris welcomed the presentation and commented that in 
her view, the introduction of a Markets and Street Trading Licensing policy was long 
overdue. She felt enforcement was paramount but did not see how the LET could be 
involved with their myriad of other roles and responsibilities. In relation to long term 
absences mentioned in paragraph 16.3 of the report (of absences of more than 4 
weeks, the Council would intervene to ensure the pitch was managed), she asked 
why the Council would have a role to play under these circumstances when traders 
were self-employed. In response, Valerie Simpson confirmed the Council did not 
want traders to have a licence and then not be trading (due illness or personal 
circumstances) so they could have several registered assistants so the business 
could continue to operate. It was a case of being compassionate and considering 
traders needs but also ensuring that a thriving market environment was created and 
supported.  
 

Page 15



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

Councillor Amanda Lloyd-Harris thanked officers for their comments but felt ensuring 
substitutes could operate pitches was overstepping the Council’s role as officers 
would be busy with a number of other duties and concerns. In relation to paragraph 
3.5 of the report, she asked whether there was a limit to the number of 6-month 
temporary trading licences a trader could have before it became a permanent pitch 
without actually applying for a permanent one. In response, Valerie Simpson 
commented the issue of temporary and permanent licences had been raised even 
before the consultation began. Currently, the conditions were somewhat restrictive 
and in instances of a trader retiring, there needed to be a workable mechanism so 
that pitches could be passed onto other family members. Moving forwards, it was 
suggested there could be a 6 or 12-month period to assess compliance before 
pitches became permanent. She also highlighted the administrative burden of 
temporary licences as these needed to be reissued every 6 months. Councillor 
Amanda Lloyd-Harris agreed a temporary to permanent transition made sense, so 
long as the process was clear and could be easily monitored. 
 
Councillor Ashok Patel commented that a Markets and Street Trading Licensing was 
a good idea and a way of assessing how things had progressed post Covid. He 
appreciated the idea was encourage rather than stifle trade. Looking at the 
consultation process (page 107), he noted the Council could object to competing 
markets being set up within 6 and a quarter mile from any Council run market. And 
the requirement for shop owners to have eye catching displays was very subjective. 
He highlighted that traders wished to avoid fixed costs and if regulations were too 
prescriptive it could stifle trade. He agreed with Councillor Lang that further 
consultation with the Trade bodies was required to ensure this was the right 
approach.  
 
Councillor Ashok Patel commented it was a shame that the consultation was taking 
place over the summer period and perhaps a longer period would be better. He also 
highlighted the Risk Management section and the implications for legal action, fines 
and risk of Judicial Review. He asked how many of these actions had taken place. 
 
In response, Valerie Simpson confirmed there had not been any instances of Judicial 
Review in Hammersmith and Fulham but this might have occurred elsewhere. The 
section regarding risk management had been inserted to provide clarity and 
transparency for everyone. She explained the distance of 6 and a quarter miles was 
a regulation under Market Rights to protect specific markets and was an option the 
Council could consider. And there would be a long, separate consultation process 
which would need to be followed. Valerie Simpson confirmed enforcement was very 
important, as were the need for Trader meetings in person to ascertain their 
feedback and establish whether they had concerns about compliance. In terms of 
conditions, most Traders were adhering to these, but it was a case of making these 
more robust. 
 
Valerie Simpson stated there was scope to extend the consultation as there was no 
set deadline, but it was important there was good engagement. Officers would 
continue to monitor responses and make a judgement as the consultation 
progressed. 
 

Page 16



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

In relation to the consultation document, Councillor Amanda Lloyd-Harris felt this 
was far too long at 10 pages and could be condensed to include the salient points. 
She agreed holding face to face meetings with Traders was an excellent idea but 
also (to bridge the digital divide) Council noticeboards should be used extensively to 
encourage Traders to submit comments in writing rather than solely online, so a 
comprehensive response was received. 
 
In response, Valerie Simpson confirmed that Environmental Health / Regulatory 
Services would speak to Estates Management about using noticeboards as a 
resource. And she confirmed that having taken on early feedback, the consultation 
document had already been reduced in length. 
 
The Chair echoed the points which had previously been made about the consultation 
process and asked what mechanisms were available to enforce against illegal street 
trading. In response, Valerie Simpson explained the Council used Trading Standards 
to issue fixed penalty notices and or pursue prosecutions for more serious offences. 
Residents were encouraged to report instances of illegal street trading to the Street 
Trading Team or Trading Standards. The Chair asked if the there was scope for LET 
to become involved in enforcement activities and Valerie Simpson confirmed she 
would make enquiries. 
 
In relation to Market Rights, the Chair commented it was odd that you could object to 
a market halfway across greater London. Valerie Simpson confirmed it was a very 
technical area and Hammersmith and Fulham currently licensed markets under the 
London Local Authorities Act but if the Council declared Market Rights this would be 
considered under the Food Safety Act. The Chair commented about the expectation 
on Traders and risk management, given that the policy had not been set out clearly 
for some time and how old it was. In general terms, Valerie Simpson commented 
that the vast majority of what was within the Markets & Street Trading Licensing 
Policy was what was already being done on a daily basis and the Council was 
looking to ratify these practices and the conditions in mitigation. 
 
Concluding the item, the Chair confirmed he was very keen for officers to take the 
consultation forward subject to their being the right engagement by September, and 
if not, the consultation might be extended if officers felt the right people had not 
responded (in person). Valerie Simpson commented that a significant proportion of 
what would be codified was largely current practice. The committee were keen there 
were clearer rules around shop fronts and how these were used. The Chair 
reiterated that the enforcement element of the policy was crucial for it to work 
appropriately. He also welcomed the social inclusion and co-production elements of 
the policy. 
 
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. That the Committee note and comment on the Prescribed Standard 
Conditions for Street Trading Licences, at Appendix 1. 

 
2. That the Committee note and comment on the updated Regulation of 

Commodities for Street Trading Licences 2025, at Appendix 2. 

Page 17



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
3. That the Committee note and comment on the draft recommended Markets & 

Street Trading Licensing Policy 2025 – 2030, at Appendix 3. 
 

4. That the Committee note and comment on the Inclusive and Accessible 
Markets and Street Trading Guidance at Appendix 4, that has been co-
produced with the Inclusive Environment Disabled Residents Team. 

 
5. That the Committee note and comment on the consultation proposals for the 

council to declare market rights and to designate the whole borough or more 
streets for regulated street trading activities. 

 
 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 9.45 pm 

 
 
Chair   

 
 
Contact officer: Charles Francis 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07776 672945 
 E-mail: Charles.Francis@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

Page 18



LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM 

   

 

 

Report to: The Economy, Arts, Sports & Public Realm Policy and Accountability 
  Committee  
 

Date:  19/11/2025 
 

Subject: Active Wellbeing Strategy 

 

Report author: Nigel Court, Interim Lead for Sport and Active Wellbeing 
 

Responsible Director: Mark Raisbeck, Director, Public Realm 
 

SUMMARY 

 
This report provides the background and initial Action Plan for the Active Wellbeing 

Strategy.  A previous report was brought to the Committee on 29 April 2025 setting 

out the rationale for a move towards a holistic approach to physical activity and 

wellbeing, recognising the role of movement, connection, and community 

engagement in improving health outcomes and reducing inequalities. 

 

The Active Wellbeing Strategy supersedes the previous Sport & Physical Activity 

Strategy, aligning with the latest national policy direction from the Department for 

Culture, Media and Sport and the Office for Health Improvement and Disparities.  

 

A one-year Action Plan has been developed, together with an indication of actions in 

Years 2 and 3 (attached Appendix), to maintain momentum in delivering the 

principles of the Active Wellbeing Strategy, which will not be finalised until the 

outcome of the Playing Pitch and Indoor Leisure strategies, currently under 

development, is known.  These strategies map supply and demand for facilities and 

are a requirement of Sport England under the planning framework.   

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. The Committee is recommended to review the report and provide comments. 
 

Wards Affected: ALL 
 
 

Our Values Summary of how this report aligns to 
the H&F Corporate Plan and the H&F 
Values 

Building shared prosperity The strategy will play a crucial role in 

fostering social and economic benefits 

for all residents by supporting healthier 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/publications/corporate-plan/hf-plan-2023-2026


   

 

   

 

lifestyles and reducing preventable 

pressure on our local and national 

public health services. As a result, 

residents will be more likely to be 

economically active and able to benefit 

from the opportunities set out in the 

Upstream London industrial strategy. 

Initiatives will tackle inequalities in 

access to active lifestyles. 

Creating a compassionate and inclusive 
council 
 

The Active Communities theme of the 
strategy will focus on how the 
grassroots sports sector and the wider 
voluntary sector can support residents 
to become more active and at the same 
time build community resilience and 
capacity and reducing social isolation. 

  

Doing things with local residents, not to 
them 
 

The strategy is being developed in 
conjunction with a range of partners 
including sports and community third 
sector operators.  Residents have been 
consulted on the themes at the previous 
stage, and will be represented on the 
Active Wellbeing partnership steering 
the work.  Delivery will include 
community programmes / wellbeing 
activities at a local level which will be 
planned together with residents to 
ensure they are relevant and effective.  

Being ruthlessly financially efficient 
 

By taking a systems-based approach 
with all partners involved in supporting 
active wellbeing, the strategy will aim to 
reduce long term costs for public health 
and social care services. At the same 
time, partners’ activities will be better 
co-ordinated and aligned (resulting in 
less duplication and greater degree of 
targeting), within a more cost-effective 
model.  

Taking pride in H&F 
 

Working together with the community 
and across Council services and 
stakeholders will create a shared sense 
of purpose and pride in the resulting 
outcomes.   

Rising to the challenge of the climate 
and ecological emergency 
  

  

  

The proposals support Active Travel 

(Walking & Cycling) which aims to 

reduce carbon emissions. They include 

a focus on locally delivered activities 

which reduce the distances travelled to 

Page 20



   

 

   

 

  

  

  

  

  
 

access opportunities. The Active 

Environment theme seeks to ensure 

accessible outdoor activities, fostering 

appreciation for nature and local 

ecosystems.  

 

 

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 
  
None 
  

 

DETAILED ANALYSIS 

Background 

 

1. The Active Wellbeing Strategy represents the next stage in the Borough’s 
approach to improving health and wellbeing through physical activity. It 
supersedes the former Sport and Physical Activity Strategy, marking a shift 
towards a systems-based approach that is explicitly linked to improving public 
health outcomes. This broader, more inclusive strategy will help deliver a 
wider range of benefits for individuals and communities, aligning with the 
Council’s commitment to fairness, inclusion, and preventative health. 

2. Co-production and consultation have taken place through engagement with 
local community organisations, health partners and voluntary sector groups 
to shape the priorities of the strategy. A series of workshops and discussions 
with key partners and internal colleagues has considered the public health 
and sports participation data for the Borough, in order to refine priorities to 
tackle inequality.  The development process included a detailed review of 
local needs and emerging opportunities, and the partnership has identified 
key areas and target groups in the context of a strategic alignment of overall 
resources. 

3. These conversations have highlighted the need for more inclusive, locally 
accessible opportunities that respond to barriers experienced by specific 
groups, including older adults, disabled residents, women and girls, and 
those living in areas of higher deprivation. 

4. The work undertaken has reinforced that achieving improved wellbeing 
outcomes requires a whole-system, cross-sector approach. Collaboration 
between Council services (such as Public Health, Environment, Housing, and 
Education) and with external partners including the NHS, local sports 
providers, and the voluntary and community sector, is essential. This 
approach supports the Council’s commitment to tackling health inequalities, 
promoting fairness, and enabling every resident to lead an active, healthy. 

5. The strategy is therefore closely aligned with the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy for the Borough and will contribute to other key ambitions, including 

Page 21



   

 

   

 

supporting local employment, strengthening community infrastructure, and 
empowering residents to take the lead in designing interventions that meet 
their needs. 

6. As reported previously to the Committee, the Borough’s average participation 
levels are good, with 73% of the Borough population achieving the 
recommended minimum of 150 mins per week of physical activity (4-6% 
higher than the average physical activity levels across Inner London and 9-
11% higher than those for Greater London).  The average, however, masks 
the concentrations of groups in the community which are persistently inactive, 
contributing to wider health inequalities. 

7. The strategy therefore aims to maintain levels of activity amongst the active 
(including continuing to provide high quality facilities) while focussing 
interventions by the Council and its partners on the challenge of increasing 
activity levels among residents who are currently inactive or minimally active. 

8. Delivery will be structured around three themes: 

o Active People – supporting individuals to build confidence and 
motivation to move more. 

o Active Communities – developing the local networks, groups and 
activities required to reach people in our community who are inactive, 
and to create accessible and welcoming entry points to a more active 
lifestyle; and 

o Active Environment – creating spaces and neighbourhoods that make it 
easier and more appealing to be active. 

9. A key component of the Active Wellbeing approach is connectivity; by 
understanding who is already working with the target groups and identifying 
community activators who can engage and motivate residents within their 
localities, the Active Wellbeing Partnership aims to strengthen coordination, 
reduce duplication, and maximise the impact of collective resources.  

10. To deepen understanding of the specific barriers faced by each of the priority 
groups, the strategy will also emphasise continuous learning and insight 
gathering. This will include ongoing consultation with community 
organisations, collection of case studies, and targeted data analysis to refine 
programmes and ensure that interventions remain relevant, equitable, and 
effective. 
 

11. The resulting dynamic and responsive Action Plan, which will be continuously 
updated on a rolling basis throughout the lifespan of the overall strategy, will 
allow the Council and its partners to respond flexibly to new evidence, 
evolving community needs, and opportunities for partnership delivery.  

Analysis 

 
12. The analysis of multiple sources of information ensures that the strategy is 

grounded in current evidence about who faces the greatest barriers to 

Page 22



   

 

   

 

physical activity and where targeted intervention can have the greatest 
impact. 

13. The identification of priority groups within the population has been informed 
by a robust evidence base and community insight.  The data draws on 
multiple sources including Active Lives 2024, local Public Health data, the 
Corporate Plan, and the collective knowledge of local organisations and 
delivery partners. It highlights the complex interplay between social, 
economic, environmental and health factors that influence residents’ ability to 
lead active and healthy lives.   

14. East Acton, Old Oak, White City, College Park, West Kensington, Queen 
Caroline and Townmead are identified as neighbourhoods were higher levels 
of deprivation limit access to affordable and accessible opportunities for 
physical activity.  These neighbourhoods also have a higher prevalence of 
complex needs and multiple long-term health conditions, increasing the 
importance of targeted, joined-up support across health, social care and 
community sectors. 

15. The physical environment often compounds these challenges, high-density 
housing with limited access to private gardens or green spaces for recreation 
and informal activity.  Data indicates higher rates of childhood obesity, 
particularly in parts of the Borough where access to affordable healthy food 
and outdoor play spaces is more constrained. 

16. Girls and women, disabled and older people are at greater risk of being 
inactive.  These groups form the focus of the Year One Action Plan as they 
represent the greatest potential for initial action to make a difference to 
participation levels. 

The Active Wellbeing Strategy 2026 – 2029 Action Plan Year 1 Summary 

17. The aim of the Active Wellbeing strategy is to maintain and continue to 
increase activity levels amongst the currently active population (which are 
above the national and London average) while prioritising interventions that 
target population groups identified as being inactive.  The core objective is to 
move people who are currently inactive to become at least minimally active, 
as this is demonstrated to have significant impact on health and wellbeing.   
 

18. The Year 1 Action Plan for the Active Wellbeing Strategy reflects the need for 
Foundation Actions, which build the capacity of the Active Wellbeing 
Partnership, develop the governance and resources and strengthen the 
evidence base to develop the more detailed actions for Years 2 and 3.  
 

19. Provision for the currently active population will continue through the 
Council’s leisure providers, playing pitches and indoor facilities.  The Playing 
Pitch and Indoor Leisure Facility strategies will audit provision and establish 
potential future demand and assist with planning for any new or revised sites 
in future. 
 

20. The actions will be funded from service budgets already approved for this 
purpose, historic grant funding and funding approved for public realm and 

Page 23



   

 

   

 

parks improvements. 
 

21. The Council will be a key partner in delivery through its teams in Public 
Health, Education and Sports Development, in particular.  However, the 
Active Wellbeing approach is system wide.  It looks to support people to 
move more in their daily lives.  The action plan therefore includes work with 
the existing leisure providers and sports clubs alongside the wider voluntary 
sector, to create the conditions for a more active population.   
 
Appendix – Active Wellbeing Strategy Action Plan 
 
Appendix 1 
 
 

 
 

Page 24



APPENDIX 1 

 

ACTIVE WELLBEING STRATEGY 2026-2029 - YEAR 1 ACTION PLAN 

Introduction 

The aim of the Active Wellbeing strategy is to maintain and continuously increase activity levels amongst the currently active 
population (which are above the national average) while prioritising interventions that target population groups identified as 
being inactive.  A core objective is to move people who are currently inactive to become at least minimally active, and 
continuously increase levels of activity, as this is demonstrated to have significant impact on health and wellbeing.   
 
The Year 1 Action Plan for the Active Wellbeing Strategy reflects the need for Foundation Actions, which strengthen the 
evidence base and governance in order to develop more detailed actions for Years 2 and 3.  Provision for the currently active 
population will continue through the Council’s leisure providers, playing pitches and indoor facilities.  Work is under way to 
produce new Playing Pitch and Indoor Leisure Facility strategies which will audit provision and establish potential future 
demand.  This will assist with planning for any new or revised sites in future.   
 
In addition to the Foundation Actions, the delivery plan is structured under three themes of Active People (who do we need to 
help to move more), Active Communities (how do we build capacity in the community to support people to move more) and 
Active Environments (making public realm more suited to active lifestyles). 
 
The Council will be a key partner in delivery through its teams in Public Health, Education and Sports Development, in 
particular.  However, the Active Wellbeing approach is system-wide.  It looks to support people to move more in their daily 
lives.  The action plan therefore includes work with the existing leisure providers and sports clubs alongside the wider 
voluntary sector, to create the conditions for a more active population.   
 
 

 

 

P
age 25



 

P
age 26



Theme Commitment Action  Target 
Completion 
Date 

Who Resources Success 
Measure 

FOUNDATION 
ACTIONS 

Required to 
build a stronger 
base for 
planning and 
delivery 

 

Create partnership 
governance 

 

 

 

Complete Playing Pitch 
and ILF strategy 

 
Create more detailed 
insight into current 
patterns of participation 
and barriers to 
engagement  
 

Work with the AWS 
development 
partners to establish 
Terms of Reference 
for a constituted 
delivery board 

 

Manage contract with 
provider 

 

Analyse Active Lives, 
Moving Communities 
and leisure provider 
data to create insight 

 

Collect more 
granular data from 
community provision 

Q4 2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Q4 2025 
 
 
 
 
 

Q1 2026 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Q1 2026 

Lead Sport and Active 
Wellbeing Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lead Sport and Active 
Wellbeing Manager 
 
 
 
 
GLL/VA/Sport 
England/Council 
Business Insight 
 
 
 
 
 
London Sport/Fulham 
and Chelsea Football 
Foundations/voluntary 
sector 

H&F Staff 
time 

 

 

 

Historic 
funding 

 

 

 

 

 

 

H&F Staff 
Time 

 

ToR agreed, 
Chair identified, 
meeting 
schedule in 
place 

 

Delivery of PPS 
and ILFS 

 

Evidence base 
provides detail 
necessary to 
plan future 
provision 

 

MAINTAIN 
ACTIVITY 
LEVELS in 
ACTIVE 
POPULATION 

Universal 
provision 

Continue partnership with 
leisure sites, LTA, Council 
run courts and pitches, 
support for voluntary 
infrastructure and existing 
private and public sector 
partner programmes 

Review against data 
in Year 2 

Ongoing 
(for duration 
of strategy) 

All AWS partners AWS partners Maintain Active 
Lives 
participation at 
74% or above. 

P
age 27



 

 

 

 

 

 

Theme Commitment Action  Target 
Completion 

Date 

Who 
 

Resources Impact Measure 

ACTIVE 
PEOPLE 
Targeted 
localities and 
population 
groups where 
inactivity is 
high 
 
Queen 
Caroline & 
Townmead – 
people with 
disabilities 
 

Removing barriers to 
participation in sport, 
exercise, and active 
recreation for disabled 
residents.  
 
 
 
 
Co-design programming 
that provides accessible 
facilities and activities that 
reflect needs of residents 
with disabilities. 

Audit specialist 
coaching capacity 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Create sub-group and 
review data on 
disabled residentss in 
the area and consult 
local groups to 
determine priorities. 
 
Commission activities 
to meet identified gaps 
 
 
 

Q1 2026 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Q1 2026 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Q4 2025 
 
 
 
 
 

Sporting bodies to 
clarify appropriate 

qualifications 
 

AWS team to 
survey existing 

database of 
providers 

 
AWS Partnership 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Council AWS 
budget £10k   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H&F funding 
KCYF (young 
people) £75k 

Review Active 
Lives baseline 
and agree target 
for 
improvement 
with Public 
Health 

P
age 28



 
Old Oak  
& White City – 
people over 66 

Provide a range of 
programmes suited to 
older people, that enable 
them to undertake at least 
two different types of 
physical activity each 
week, in order to build core 
strength, balance and 
flexibility.  This reflects the 
impact of physical activity 
on prevention of common 
conditions such as heart 
disease, stroke, arthritis, 
diabetes and dementia, 
and reduces the need for 
primary care. 

Create a localised 
network of 
stakeholders (homes, 
community centres, 
voluntary 
organisations etc) 
engaging older people 
and their families and 
carers  
 
Audit appropriately 
qualified providers 
 
 
Commission a series 
of activities in 
partnership with 
stakeholders  
 
Develop qualitative 
metrics for wellbeing 
of participants and 
establish baseline 

Q1 2026 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Q4 2025 
 
 
 

Q4 2025 
 
 
 
 

Q3 2026 

Adult Social Care, 
Communications 
team, 
Public Health   
Dementia Action 
Alliance, White 
City stakeholders 
group 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Use of LOOP or 
similar platform to 
understand return 
on social value of 
physical activity. 

Our Lady of 
Fatima Parish 
Centre for 66+ 
Consultation 
events. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
£15k AWS 
budget 
 
 
 

 

Involve at least 
300 people over 
the age of 66 in 

the location 
(50%) in two 

forms of 
physical activity 

 
  
 

College Park & 
West 
Kensington – 
women and 
girls 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Provide safe and 
welcoming spaces and 
activities for women and 
girls to undertake a range 
of physical activities 
 
Deliver communications 
that stress the importance 
of physical activity to 
women’s health 
 
 
 

Create women and 
girls-led stakeholder 
group for the area, to 
develop clearer 
understanding of the 
barriers to activity, 
including 
differentiated barriers 
for people with 
protected 
characteristics 
 

Q4 2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Q1 2026 
 

Staff time 
 
 
 
 
 

Partners 
 
 
 
 

AWS team 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

£10k AWS 
 

Increase in 
attendance at 
women-only 
sessions in 
leisure centres 
 
Growth in 
repeat 
participation: 
15% increase in 
the number of 
participants 
sustaining their 

P
age 29



 
 
Provide women-only 
activities at Council 
supported leisure facilities 
 

Map & gap existing 
provision against 
identified barriers. 
 
Commission activities 
in partnership with 
stakeholder group 
 

 
 

Q3 2026 

 
 
GLL/VA/vol sector 
 

 
 

H&F funding 
KCYF (girls) 

£75k 

participation.  
(attending 
>50% of all 
sessions in a 6 
month period).  
 
 

YEAR 2  
 
 
 

Expansion & Deepening 
Impact: 
- Strengthening    
  Partnerships 
- Expand Programme    
  Reach 
- Embed Inclusive Good   
  Practice 
 
Capacity Building: 
 
 
 
 
 
Monitoring & Evaluation: 

- Develop partnerships 
with local schools, 
health services and 
community 
organisations to 
increase their 
programme reach and 
impact. 
 
- Develop toolkits for 
inclusive sports 
delivery tailored to 
each priority group. 
 
                          
Implement feedback 
loops with participants 
to refine programmes. 
Begin collecting 
impact data (e.g. 
participation rates, 
wellbeing indicators). 
 

Q2 2027 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Q4 2026 
 
 
 
 

 
Q3 2027 

Primary Schools 
Sports 

Association  
NHS North West 

London ICB 
Partners 

H&F Comms 
Team 

 
Action on 
Disability,  

The London 
Buddy Scheme, 
Fulham Reach 

 
 

H&F Comms, 
H&F ICT 

 

To be 
determined 
by the AW 

Partnership 

To be 
determined by 
the AW 
Partnership.  

YEAR 3 
 
 
 
 

Sustainability & Innovation:  -Support from local 
networks and 
subsidised training 
opportunities to help 
local organisations 

Q3 2028 Vol sector, SOBUS 
Partners 

To be 
determined 
by the AW 
Partnership 

To be 
determined by 
the AW 
Partnership  

P
age 30



improve their 
sustainability. 

 Strategic focus on 
embedding long term 
sustainability, inclusivity & 
good practice: 

Facilitate new 
partnerships & 
networks  

Q3 2028    

 

Theme Commitment Action  Target completion 
date 

Lead Partner/other 
partners 
 

Resources Impact 
Measure 

ACTIVE 
COMMUNITIES 

Creating the 
conditions for 
increased 
physical and 
mental activity 
by empowering 
local 
communities 
and trusted 
individuals.  

 

 

Increase community 
participation in 
physical activity across 
all ages and 
backgrounds 

 

 

 

Build local capacity 
for community-led 
activity: 
Support individuals and 
community providers 
who are trusted by 
target groups to deliver 
culturally relevant, 
accessible, and 

Key Measures: 

Deliver a borough-
wide Move H&F 
campaign 
promoting free and 
low-cost activities 
in parks, leisure 
centres, and 
community hubs. 
Include targeted 
outreach in 
deprived wards. 
 
Partnerships with 
Local 
Organisations: 
Collaborate with 
embedded 
community groups 
to reach under-
served populations 
 
Identify & support 
“Neighbourhood 
capacity builders” 

 
 

Q4 2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Q3 2026 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 Q1 2026 
 
 

 

Lead: H&F Council 
(Public Health, 
Leisure Services) 
Partners: Local 
community centres, 
GLL, schools, NHS, 
voluntary sector 

 

 

 Health and 
Wellbeing for All CIC 
Focus: Somali 
women and ethnic 
minority groups                                                                                                                 

 

                                    
Barons Court 
Project 

 

£15k AWS 
budget 

£8k (external 
Sport England 
grant funding) 
for training, 
materials, and 
volunteer 
coordination  

 

                               
Staff time and 
community 
engagement 

Touch point 
Consultations 
with TRA’s 

 

 

10% increase in 

participation in 

community 

activities (via 

Active Lives 

Survey)- 5 new 

community-led 

activity groups 

formed  

 
 
Trusted 
Individuals 
Activated: 
20 trained peer 
leaders 
delivering 10 
new regular 
community-led 
sessions. 
Retention rates: 
How many 
continue to 
lead or support 

P
age 31



inclusive wellbeing 
services.  

Those tasked with 
building 
“Neighbourhood 
capacity” will lead local 
walking, cycling, and 
fitness sessions in 
estates and community 
spaces.                                                

 

Create inclusive 
opportunities for 
underrepresented 
groups: 

[Linked to priority 
groups & targeted 
communities.] 

                                                                                                                                       

Integrate active 
wellbeing into local 
health and care 
pathways 

 

  

Focus Groups:        
- Inspirational                
champion leaders     
- Volunteers               
- Cultural leaders - 
Community    
Champions 

 
                           
Establish  
new partnerships 
with local 
organisations to 
deliver physical 
activity projects for 
women, older 
adults, people with 
disabilities & global 
majority 
communities. 
 
Develop an Active 
Wellbeing Referral 
Pathway so GPs, 
social prescribers, 
and health 
professionals can 
refer residents to 
community activity 
programmes. 

 
 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Q3 2026 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

March 2026 

Focus: Mental health 
and wellbeing      

SOBUS, Tenants and 
Residents  

 

 

                                              
Lead: H&F Council 
(Public Health)          
Partners: Local 
charities, Equalities 
Forum, Disability 
Network H&F 

 

                                                                                 

Lead: NHS North 
West London ICB & 
H&F Council (Public 
Health) Partners: 
Primary Care 
Networks, Better 
Leisure, voluntary 
sector 

 

 

                                                                                                                                       

 

 

 

£10k AWS 
budget for 
funding of 
system 
integration, 
training, and 
promotion. 
Learning & 
Data from GLL 
Healthwise 
referral 
programme. 

activities over 
time. 
Reach:  
Number of 
residents 
engaged 
through peer-
led initiatives.  
 

 
 
 
 
15 projects 
funded – 
Minimum 500 
residents 
engaged from 
priority groups. 
 
 
 
                          
250 referrals to 
community 
activity 
schemes – 
Improved self-
reported 
wellbeing 
among 
participants 
(Warwick-
Edinburgh 
scale). 

P
age 32



YEAR 2: Programme Expansion: 
 
 
Partnership 
Development: 

- Train local 
volunteers and 
peer leaders to 
support delivery. 
- Co-design 
programmes with 
community 
champions from 
priority groups 

Q3 2027 
 

 
 

Q1 2027 

Partners 
 

 
  

VA & GLL 
Partners – Action on 

Disability Co 
Production Steering 

Group, Open Age,  

To be 
determined by 

the AW 
Partnership

  

To be 
determined by 
the AW 
Partnership  

YEAR 3: Sustainability Planning: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Innovation in Delivery: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy Influence: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Impact Reporting: 

- Secure multi-year 
funding or 
sponsorships for 
priority 
programmes. 
Establish 
community-led 
steering groups for 
each priority area.                           
- Introduce digital 
or hybrid activity 
formats (e.g. virtual 
fitness for older 
adults). Trial new 
sports or activities 
based on 
community 
feedback. 
- Share learnings 
with borough-wide 
networks and 
contribute to local 
strategy. Advocate 
for inclusive sport 
in borough 
planning and 
funding decisions 
- Publish a 3-year 
impact report 

Q3 2028 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                    

Q3 2028 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Q3 2028 

AWS Partnership 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                

H&F Comms 
London Sport 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

H&F Senior 
Management/Cabinet 

Members 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

To be 
determined by 

the AW 
Partnership

  

To be 
determined by 
the AW 
Partnership 
 
 
 
 P

age 33



showcasing 
outcomes and 
stories. Use data to 
inform future 
priorities and 
funding bids. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Partners 
School Games 

Organiser, 
 Young Hammersmith 

& Fulham 
Foundation, 

London Sport, 

 

Theme Commitment Action  Target Completion Date Lead Partner/other 
partners 

 

Resources Impact Measure 

Theme 
ACTIVE 
ENVIRONMENTS 
Making public 
realm more 
suited to active 
lifestyles 
 
 
 

Sustainable 
Impact Embed 

sustainability and 
climate resilience 
across the active 

environment 

Council Leisure 
Centres included 
within the Council’s 
plan to be carbon 
neutral by 2030 
Installation of 
Ground source heat 
pumps 

Q4 2025 H&F Facilities 
Greenwich Leisure 
Head of Sport and 
Active Wellbeing 

£2.5million 
(approved) 

Complete 
removal of use of 

Gas across the 
sites  

Improving our Parks 
and Recreational 
spaces 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To invest into a 
three-year 
programme of 
improvement works 
to deliver an 
enhanced high-
quality playground 
offer across LBHF, 
including 
developing 
exemplar 

2028 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Highways and 
parks teams 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

£8.3million 
(approved) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase in 
children and 
families 
reporting regular 
activity through 
play 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 34



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To provide a better 
and safer place for 
play 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

playgrounds in our 
major parks of 
Ravenscourt Park 
and Bishops Park. 
 
 
 
The replacement of 
our Parks lighting 
and introducing new 
designated 
pathways 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

2027 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Highways and 
Parks Teams 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
£1.1million 
(approved) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To improve the 
baseline of 
residents (58% 
to 80%) travelling 
safely in dark 
hours by 2027 

Promote active and 
sustainable travel 
choices 

Deliver a Choose 
Active Travel 
campaign targeting 
residents and local 
employers to reduce 
car use and 
promote 
cycling/walking. 
Include business 
recognition awards. 

 
Q4 2026 

Lead: H&F Active 
travel Team 
Partners: Local 
businesses, TfL 

£20,000 for 
campaign 
and materials 
(approved) 

25 businesses 
signed up- 15% 
increase in 
active travel to 
work 

 

 

 

P
age 35



LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM 

Report to: The Economy, Arts, Sports & Public Realm Policy and Accountability 
Committee 

 

Date:  19/11/2025 
 

Subject: Play Transformation Programme 2025-28 
 

Report author: Hugo Ross-Tatam, Parks Projects Officer 
 

Responsible Director: Mark Raisbeck, Director of Public Realm 
 
  

 

SUMMARY 
 
This report provides an overview of the current condition of Hammersmith and 
Fulham’s playgrounds and outlines the development of the 2025-2028 Play 
Transformation programme which will see a £8.3m investment across the borough. 
This programme will revitalise and enhance the play experience across our parks, 
open spaces, plus some housing sites while also creating three coproduced 
exemplar play areas for residents to enjoy. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. For the Committee to note and comment on the paper and attached 
presentation. 

 

 

Wards Affected: All 
 

 
 

Our Values Summary of how this report aligns to the H&F 
Corporate Plan and the H&F Values 

Building shared prosperity The improvement of playgrounds will enhance the 
local environment, making it more attractive for 
residents and businesses.  

Creating a compassionate 
and inclusive council 

Ensuring all playgrounds are well-maintained and 
accessible to children, young people and their parents 
and carers. Ensuring that all parts of the borough have 
access to high quality playgrounds, and we invest in 
play for all ages. 

Doing things with local 
residents, not to them 

Establishing the Play Forum will help drive the 
playground transformation programme but importantly 
help establish more play outside of parks such as play 
streets. Working with local stakeholder groups and 

Page 36

Agenda Item 5

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/publications/corporate-plan/hf-plan-2023-2026
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/publications/corporate-plan/hf-plan-2023-2026


Our Values Summary of how this report aligns to the H&F 
Corporate Plan and the H&F Values 

communities to understand their needs for play in our 
parks and ensuring that works are co-produced.  

Being ruthlessly financially 
efficient 

Investment in our parks will go where it most needed 
and changes to playgrounds will be undertaken 
ensuring that there is no additional maintenance cost 
for the future.   

Taking pride in H&F Investing in places and our playgrounds is key to 
ensuring the boroughs attractiveness to work, play, 
live and invest.  

Rising to the challenge of 
the climate and ecological 
emergency 

Implementing sustainable practices in playgrounds 
improvements and maintenance. 

 

 

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 
  
Cabinet Report for Transformation of Playgrounds and other Play Facilities, 
15/09/2025 
  

 

DETAILED ANALYSIS 
 
Background 

 
1. The London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham manages 33 playgrounds 

across 55 parks and open spaces. While regular investment has been made 
through revenue budgets and capital improvements funded by Section 106 
contributions that the Council works hard to negotiate from developers, further 
investment is needed to ensure high-quality play provision across the portfolio. 
In addition to these public spaces, there are also 62 play areas located within 
H&F Housing estates. 
 

2. To assess the quality of play provision across the borough’s parks and open 
spaces, an independent evaluation was conducted in 2024. Each site was 
scored against 15 quality criteria, with a maximum possible score of 150. The 
assessment covered a range of factors including accessibility, furniture, play 
value, planting, sensory elements, surfacing, surrounding environment, and 
overall aesthetics, among others. 
 

3. The report showed that 5 of the 33 playgrounds scored a low score of below 
50, 20 scored between 51 and 100 and only 8 playgrounds scored above 101 
with the highest score overall being 127. This review showed that several 
playgrounds would benefit from investment to ensure that the Council is 
providing an excellent level of play across the borough.  

Page 37

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/publications/corporate-plan/hf-plan-2023-2026
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/publications/corporate-plan/hf-plan-2023-2026


 
4. Following this review a major investment of £8.3m in a Play Transformation 

Programme has been approved by Cabinet. All funding is from Section 106 
(S106) or the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).   
 

5. This investment will transform play provision across the borough and provide 
more inspiring and inclusive playgrounds of a high quality for residents. The 
programme will create an exemplar playground from its existing portfolio, with 
the prospect of creating two further exemplar playgrounds subject to funding.   

 
6. Additionally, we are keen to ensure the investment is targeted at our 

playgrounds that require the investment the most which are the playgrounds 
that scored low in the independent review.  

 
7. In addition to parks playgrounds the investment will be used on housing 

playgrounds. A strategic review will be carried out in collaboration with the 
Housing Department to identify playgrounds in housing areas that would benefit 
from improved play facilities through this investment and remove gaps in public 
play provision. The aim being to ensure that excellent play facilities are readily 
accessible to all families across the borough. 

 
8. Alongside the development of playgrounds, the programme will establish a Play 

Forum. The Forum will focus on how playgrounds are managed and improved, 
while also exploring opportunities for broader play initiatives beyond traditional 
playgrounds, such as play streets and community events. Acting as a critical 
friend to the Play Transformation Programme, the Play Forum will support its 
delivery while offering constructive challenge to ensure the programme remains 
responsive, inclusive, and effective. 

 
9. In the current financial year, Parks are already committed to spending £466,300 

of existing funding not related to the Play Transformation Programme 
refurbishing 3 playgrounds to upgrade and improve. They are located in 
Bishops Park, Margravine Gardens and Wormwood Scrubs (Braybrook Street). 

 
10. Housing Services - Neighbourhoods and Communities have 62 play sites 

across housing land (HRA). These are a mixture of Playgrounds, Ball Courts, 
and Multi Use Games Areas (MUGAs).  

 
11. Housing Services - Estates Management Team manage the inspections and 

maintenance of the playgrounds through a contract with IdVerde (grounds 
maintenance contractor).  

 
12. There is a recognised need to improve the playground provision across the 

HRA land, especially in the White City estate, which is demonstrated in the data 
Housing receive. In addition, the estates team work with residents to 
understand and improve the play provision on the estates.  

 
13. Housing Services are also seeking to work closely with the registered providers 

to ensure they are funding and contributing to enhanced play provision on their 
land, and when in close proximity to HRA land e.g the Clem Atlee estate. 

 
 

Page 38



Play Transformation Programme 2025-28 
  
14. The £8.3m total commitment is for a 3-year programme to be developed which 

takes into consideration the play areas that scored poorly in the independent 
review, along with a review of the Council’s annual maintenance and safety 
inspection records and sites with a significant number of public enquiries and 
complaints surrounding maintenance and provision of play at the location. 

 
15. To date, £5.4m has been identified from S106 and CIL funding. When 

developing the programme, the availability of allocated funds will be a 
significant factor as some S106 that the Council negotiates from developers 
funding can be area bound, so must be spent within the park it is assigned to 
as part of the funding agreement.   
 

16. Where play facilities need improvement and there is no funding from S106, the 
allocation of CIL will be considered, as this funding is not tied to a specific area.   
 

17. Where there is no allocated S106 for a park in the current funding allocation, 
future S106/CIL funding will be sought for these parks from the £2.8m still to be 
allocated.    

 
18. Engagement and consultation will be central to the success of the programme. 

Ongoing engagement with key stakeholders, such as the Play Forum and 
Parks Forum, will continue throughout the duration of the programme and 
beyond. In addition to this, structured consultations will be carried out for each 
playground to gather insights into community needs and preferences, and to 
collect feedback on proposed designs. Where significant improvements are 
planned, a two-stage consultation process is proposed. The first stage will 
invite residents and those who use the space to share their ideas and 
aspirations for the playground, and the second stage will seek feedback on 
design proposals developed in response to the initial input. 

 
19. Consultation will include but will not be limited to residents, park users, Friends 

Groups, the Play Forum, the Parks Forum, Disabled Residents Team, Tenant 
and Resident Associations, and the Youth Council. These consultations will be 
tailored to each site to ensure that all relevant local voices are heard. Efforts 
will be made to involve all local stakeholders so that the final playground 
designs genuinely reflect community feedback. 

 
20. In addition to creating playgrounds for children, the programme aims to 

promote inclusive play opportunities for all age groups, recognising the social 
and health benefits of spending time outdoors and connecting with others. As 
part of the consultation process, proposals will include features such as 
pétanque pitches, table tennis tables, permanent chess boards, and dedicated 
spaces for teenagers. 

 
21. While the programme is still in development, Ravenscourt Park has been 

identified as the proposed location for the borough’s flagship exemplar play 
site. This selection is based on its central location, the size of the park, and the 
current condition of its play facilities, some of which require significant 
improvement, including replacing the paddling pool with a new water play 

Page 39



feature. Given the scale of work needed, early commencement is essential to 
ensure delivery during Years 2 and 3 of the programme. 

 
22. In addition to this playground programme, the Housing department is seeking to 

provide playground and MUGA sites within major estates developments. This is 
proposed at Ivatt Place Playground within the West Kensington and Gibbs 
Green estates, as part of the Earls Court consortium funding. This is part of a 
wider public realm project which will improve communal spaces, play facilities, 
wayfinding and connecting communities. Whilst ensuring consultation with 
residents, community groups, the TRA, schools and colleagues to ensure a 
joined-up approach which meets local needs.  

 
  

LIST OF APPENDICES 

 
Appendix 1 – Map and list of playgrounds 

 

Page 40



Appendix 1 – Map and list of playgrounds  

 

Figure 1 Map of playgrounds in Hammersmith & Fulham 

Page 41



  

  

  

Table 1 List of playgrounds in Parks and Open Spaces 

Playgrounds in Parks and Open Spaces  

Bishops Park over 8's  

Bishops Park Sand and Water  

Bishops Park under 8's  

Brook Green  

Cathnor Park combined  

Eelbrook Common  

Frank Banfield Park  

Godolphin Road  

Hammersmith Park  

Hurlingham Park (general)  

Hurlingham Park (natural play)  

Lillie Road Rec  

Little Wormwood Scrubs  

Loris Gardens  

Marcus Garvey  

Margravine Gardens  

Maxwell Road  

Norland North  

Normand Park  

Ravenscourt Park (North)  

Ravenscourt Park East  

Ravenscourt Park Paddling pool & South)  

Page 42



Rowberry Mead  

Shepherds Bush combined  

South Park  

Upper Mall  

Wendell Park  

White City  

William Parnell combined  

Wormholt Park combined  

Wormwood Scrubs (Braybrook)  

Wormwood Scrubs (Scrubs Lane)  

Wormwood Scrubs BMX  

  

 

Page 43


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Active Wellbeing Strategy
	Appendix 1

	5 Play Transformation Programme 2025-28
	Appendix 1 – Map and list of playgrounds


